


11.New Business

(A) Proclamation regarding 80’s Flashback/Shriners Hospital
Weekend - Dave Linn

(B) Request for Release of Performance Guarantees for Phase 3,
Section 1 of Gemstone Village — Planning Director Joe Allen

(C) Request for additional positions at the Department of Social
Services (DSS) — DSS Director Patrick Betancourt

(D)Request for Resolution Opposing House Bill 340 - Mr.
Betancourt and Shelly Foreman with VAYA Health

(E) Resolution Accepting Bid and Authorization of Upset Bid
Process for the Sale of Surplus Property — County Attorney Eric
Ridenour

(F) Discussion concerning purchase of property located at 195
Wayah Street, Franklin, NC 28734 - County Manager Derek
Roland

(G)Consideration of revised county vehicle/equipment policy — HR
& Safety Director Mike Decker

(H) Consideration of updated Records Retention and Disposition
Schedules — HR & Safety Director Mike Decker

(I) Consideration of proclamation for National County Government
Month — County Manager Derek Roland

Consent Agenda — Attachment #12

All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion, No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the March 14, 2023 regular meeting

(B) Budget Amendments #220-224

(C) Tax releases for the month of March in the amount of $1,907.10
(D) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report — no action necessary

12 Appointments
(A) Planning (1 Seat)

13.Closed session as allowed under NCGS

14.Adjourn/Recess






NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO CONSIDER MODIFICATION OF THE MACON COUNTY WATERSHED
ORDINANCE TO ALLOW THE WATERSHED ADMINISTRATOR TO APPROVE
SPECIAL NONRESIDENTIAL INTENSITY ALLOCATION

Please take notice that the Macon County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. in the Commission Boardroom located
on the third floor of the Macon County Courthouse, located at 5 West Main Street,
Franklin, NC 28734, concerning a proposed modification of the Macon County
Watershed Ordinance to allow the Watershed Administrator to approve Special
Nonresidential Intensity Allocations (SNIA).

The applicable portion of §156.32(C) of the Macon County Watershed Ordinance
currently states:

“The Planning Board is authorized to approve SNIAs consistent with the
provisions of this ordinance, and such approved projects shall be awarded on
a first come, first serve basis.”

The proposed amendment to the applicable portion of §156.32(C) of the Macon County
Watershed Ordinance is for such provision to state:

“The Watershed Administrator is authorized to approve SNIAs consistent
with the provisions of this ordinance, and such approved projects shall be
awarded on a first come, first serve basis.”

A complete copy of the Macon County Watershed Ordinance can be viewed on the
County website, maconnc.org, under “Public Announcements,” and a hard copy may be
obtained in the lobby at the Courthouse Annex Building, 5 West Main Street, Franklin,
North Carolina.

This item was approved for Public Hearing at the February 21, 2023 meeting of the
Macon County Board of County Commissioners.

Derek Roland
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board
Macon County






To: Macon County Board of Commissioners
From: Macon County Public Library Board of Trustees
Date: April 11, 2023

Historically, the Macon County Public Library Board of Trustees has operated under the
umbrella of two bodies:

The County Commission which provides library space, operational funding and
commissioner liaisons, along with approval and appointment of library trustees.

The Fontana Regional Library System which provides funding and services, along with
operational policies and guidelines mandated by the State Library of North Carolina.

For decades this arrangement has proven effective, efficient, and much to the benefit of the
citizens of Macon County. Over the years, subsequent trustee boards have endeavored to offer
counsel and advice in a variety of ways. One primary function has been to review, understand,
and implement various laws, operational policies and procedures affecting our county libraries.

With recent developments, the library's board of trustees wanted to respond directly to the
full Board of Commissioners as the Commissioners collectively consider withdrawing our
libraries from the Fontana Regional Library System. From the trustees' perspective, several
critical issues are at stake if the Board of Commissioners resolves to withdraw from the
Fontana Regional Library System:

Earlier the Library Board of Trustees sent each of you, and the county manager, a five
page document, Considerations for Macon County Withdrawing from the Fontanna
Regional System, outlining the procedures and cost of such a resolution. It is the
trustees’ hope that this document makes clear the financial impact suffered by the
Macon County taxpayers if the Board of Commissioners acts to withdraw from the
Fontana System. The trustees feel that the effect of the withdrawal is financially
staggering and unduly burdensome with absolutely no corresponding benefit to the
citizens of our community or the Library patrons.

Oversight for an independent Macon County Library System is another issue. To our
understanding, no library trustee board has ever received any oversight directives from
our Board of Commissioners. The current group of trustees is, however, receptive to
considering directives that the Board of Commissioners adopts. A withdrawal will create
the need to establish new operational oversight, new policies and procedures that comply
with federal and state laws and statutes, along with those of the State Library of North
Carolina, as well as other unanticipated consequences caused by terminating Macon
County's relationship with Fontana that has worked well for almost 80 years. Such
oversight will have to come from the Board of Commissioners or its designees.

In summary, the Macon County Public Library Board of Trustees expresses its strongest
endorsement for our county libraries to remain in the Fontana Regional Library System.



CONSIDERATIONS FOR MACON COUNTY WITHDRAWING
FROM THE FONTANA REGIONAL LIBRARY SYSTEM

Under current North Carolina state regulations, a regional library system serves two or more
contiguous counties. Fontana Regional Library (FRL) serves three counties; Jackson, Macon, and
Swain. Therefore, if one county withdraws from the region the remaining two counties would remain
a regional library system. If two counties withdraw, it would force the region to disband. The terms
of withdrawal or dissolution are set forth by state statutes and the regional agreement, excerpted
below:

Fontana Regional Library Regional Agreement:
V. Terms of Property Ownership

A major benefit of regional cooperation is that scarce resources may be shared among the various
county residents without wasteful duplication; however, certain ownership restrictions shall apply:

A All real property, buildings, grounds and other facilities of each library shall be acquired and
owned by their respective county, and occupied by each library in accordance with a facility lease
between Fontana Regional Library and each county.

B. All other property, including library materials, technology, furnishings, fixtures and
equipment, vehicles, or other resources, purchased with state, regional, or county funds shall be
owned by Fontana Regional Library excepting what is provided for in Section V.C.

C. The Hudson Library facility and all library materials, furnishings, and fixtures acquired by
Hudson Library, Inc. shall be owned by Hudson Library, Inc, a private non-profit corporation.

D. All library materials, furnishings, and fixtures acquired by Fontana Regional Library and
located at Hudson Library, Inc. shall be owned by Fontana Regional Library.

E. As included under N.C.G.S. Chapter 1 60A, Article 20, Part |, Joint Exercise of Power, property
purchased by the Fontana Regional Library is owned jointly as tenants in common by the
participating counties.

F. See also Section VIII hereof regarding the distribution of property in the event of withdrawal
of a participating local governmental unit and Section IX hereof regarding the dissolution of the
Fontana Regional Library.

VIII. Provisions for Withdrawal

A. A participating local governmental unit proposing to withdraw from the Fontana Regional
Library shall give written notice on or before July 1 to the Fontana Regional Library Board of Trustees,
the other counties’ Boards of Commissioners, and the State Library of North Carolina. The withdrawal
shall be effective the following june 30.

B. Should that participating local governmental unit decide within this time period to rescind the
proposal, that participating local governmental unit shall remain a part of the Fontana Regional
Library under the same conditions and requirements as the agreement under which they became a
member.

C. Should that participating local governmental unit fully withdraw, assets located in the local
library facility will remain the assets of the withdrawing library. Notwithstanding the
aforementioned, in the event there are assets located in the local library facility that were purchased



by Fontana Regional Library with Fontana Regional Library funds and intended for Fontana Regional
Library regional support services, those assets will remain the assets of Fontana Regional Library.

X Provisions for Dissolution

A The Fontana Regional Library may be dissolved if two of the three participating local
governmental unit parties withdraw in accordance with the procedures stated above.

B. As included under N.C.G.S. Chapter 1 60A, Article 20, Part 1, Joint Exercise of Power, property
purchased by the Fontana Regional Library is owned jointly as tenants in common by the
participating counties; therefore, if the Fontana Regional Library is dissolved, the counties of Jackson,
Macon, and Swain shall divide the joint assets equally among

C. The distribution of properties and resources jointly owned shall be accomplished by a
committee composed of representatives from each county, the current Fontana Regional Director,
and a representative from the State Library of North Carolina.

D. After all outstanding debts are resolved, any remaining funds from the member counties shall
be returned to them and the distribution of any remaining State or Federal funds shall be determined
by the State Library. Any land and building property owned by the Fontana Regional Library shall be
sold and the proceeds distributed to the counties, or the property may be distributed to the counties
on an equitable basis as agreed upon by the committee of representatives. Other property such as the
bookmobile, outreach van, computers and other technology, books, and any other assets shall be sold
at auction and the proceeds divided among the counties, or property may be distributed in some
other equitable manner as agreed upon by the committee of representatives.

State of North Carolina Administrative Code:
7 NCAC 021 .0308 WITHDRAWAL FROM OR DISSOLUTION OF A REGIONAL LIBRARY

(a) A county proposing to withdraw from a regional library shall give written notice on or before July
1 to the regional library board, the other participating local governmental units, and the State Library
of North Carolina. The withdrawal shall be effective on the following June 30.

(b} The withdrawing county shall establish eligibility for grants to public libraries according to 07
NCAC 021.0201 on or before the effective date of withdrawal.

(c} Capital expenditures by the withdrawing county that are necessitated by the withdrawal may not
replace support for operating costs in establishing eligibility to receive grants to public libraries
according to 07 NCAC 021.0201.

(d} If withdrawal of a county results in the dissolution of the regional library, the remaining counties
must also establish eligibility to receive grants to public libraries according to 07 NCAC 021.0201 by
the effective date of withdrawal.

In the event of withdrawal, there are logistical, monetary, and service considerations that will need to
be addressed by all counties.

MONETARY CONSIDERATIONS IF MACON COUNTY WITHDRAWS FROM FRL

1. Staffing - Alllibrary staff who work in Macon County libraries would become employees of Macon
County.
a. All library employees would need to be paid in accordance with the Macon County pay
plans. Currently, most library staff are paid well below Macon County employees.
b. Eligible library staff would need to be added to Macon County benefit plans.



c. Several staff positions are currently shared across the FRL system. These positions would
need to be replaced by Macon County employees.

d. The administrative, financial, purchasing human resources, and IT responsibilities
currently handled by FRL would need to be shifted to Macon County departments, which
might require additional County staff.

Catalog system - FRL libraries are part of the NC Cardinal Consortium which is contracted through
FRL. Macon County would need to contract for their own system with NC Cardinal or another
system. Macon County would need to pay for the conversion costs to port their collection and
patron databases into their own system. Macon County would need to develop a new collection of
materials or work with FRL to acquire the collections currently held by Hudson Library, Macon
County Public Library, and Nantahala Community Library. There are over 120,000 books and
other materials in the Macon County libraries at this time.

The LAN and WAN network is owned/leased by FRL. Macon County would need to purchase new
servers and network equipment, including switches, routers, etc., and/or pay FRL for the existing
equipment. Macon County would need to contract with a service provider for Internet and
broadband service.

E-rate - the federal e-rate program pays 80% of the cost of Internet and broadband access for the
libraries. This process is handled through the FRL HQ office. Macon County would have to take
over the erate filing duties in order to continue receiving funding.

. Al property, including library materials, technology, furnishings, fixtures and equipment, vehicles,
or other resources, purchased with state, regional, or county funds are owned by Fontana
Regional Library. A County withdrawing from the system would have to replace the materials,
furniture, fixtures, and equipment.

. State Aid to Public Libraries - North Carolina provides a block grant to each eligible county based
on population and economic status. In order to receive this grant a county must apply annually.
Libraries withdrawing from a region have a one year waiting period (also known as a
demonstration year) before they are eligible. Based on recent years, the amount that each county
would be eligible to receive would range from the mid $90,000s for Jackson and Macon, to the mid
$70,000s for Swain.

LOGISTICAL CONSIDERATIONS IF MACON COUNTY WITHDRAWS FROM FRIL

. Staffing - all Macon County library staff including the County and Branch librarians would need to
be added to the county staffing plan.

a. All library staff would need to be onboarded into the Macon County payroll and benefits
systems.

b. Current Macon County staff pay plans may not include library staff categories. These
would need to be updated by Macon County administration.

c. FRL staff are members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS)
and state 401K system. They would need to be transferred from FRL to Macon County in
these systems. This would be the responsibility of Macon County administration.

d. North Carolina General Statute 153A-267 defines the qualifications of the chief librarian.
To be eligible for appointment and service as chief administrative officer of a library
system (whether designated chief librarian, director of library services, or some other



title), a person must have a professional librarian certificate issued by the Secretary of
Cultural Resources, pursuant to G.S. 125-9, under regulations for certification of public
librarian as established by the North Carolina Public Librarian Certification Commission
pursuant to the provisions of G.S. 143B-67.

2. Catalog system - As noted above, collection and user databases are part of the FRL system in NC-
Cardinal.

a. Local system information would need to be exported from the current system and
imported to whatever new system Macon County acquired.

b. Local library policies such as fines and fees, checkout periods, inter-library loan privileges,
hold policies, library card expirations, etc. would need to be established.

¢. Library patrons would need to be notified of the changes, would need to acquire new
library cards, and would need to return NC Cardinal materials.

d. Resource sharing in the NC Cardinal system is currently handled by FRL staff and courier
service. [f the withdrawing county becomes part of the NC Cardinal consortium it would
need to take over these shipping and receiving duties and create a central location for this
operation. A courier system would also need to be created between Franklin, Highlands,
and Topton.

3. All financial services including accounts payable, accounts receivable, and payroll are handled by
FRL staff. These functions would need to be transferred to the Macon County departments
responsible for these functions.

4. LSTA grants - while library staff might still prepare the applications and administer LSTA grants, it
would be the responsibility of the Macon County administration to approve and submit the
applications, as well as track expenditures and request reimbursements.

5. Purchasing and procurement is currently handled by FRL staff in accordance with FRL policies.
These functions would need to be transferred to the Macon County departments responsible for
these functions.

6. Administrative functions such as human resources are handled by FRL staff, including recruiting,
hiring, terminating, and benefit administration. These functions would need to be transferred to
the Macon County departments responsible for these functions.

7. Automation and technology support are handled by FRL staff. These functions would need to be
transferred to the Macon County departments responsible for these functions.

a. Current software licenses for Windows, Microsoft Office, filtering, antivirus, etc. are held
through FRL. These licenses would need to be renegotiated separately for any Macon
County library branches.

b. Hardware and software updates and maintenance are handled by FRL shared employees.
Macon County would need to take over these functions.

c. Network maintenance are handled by FRL shared employees. Macon County would need
to take over these functions.

8. [Internet and Broadband -
a. The fiber optic wide area network that connects the FRL member libraries to the
automation system and the Internet is centered in the HQ office in Bryson City. The



existing service to Macon County would have to be dropped and new lines installed
connecting any Macon County library branches to each other.

b. Internet access is contracted through FRL. The equipment and network connections to
handle this are owned/leased by FRL and reside in the HQ office in Bryson City. Macon
County would have to make arrangements for Internet access through some other
mechanism and/or provider, and acquire servers and network access.

¢. The costs of the Internet and broadband service are funded primarily through the federal
e-rate program. Macon County would need to take over e-rate filing. The process to
receive erate funding is complex and needs to be started up to 6 months in advance.

Courier service between FRL member libraries is handled by FRL staff using an FRL vehicle. Any
library branches in Macon County would need to make other arrangements to provide courier
service between branches.

10. Any contracts, services or consortia agreements, grants, or other fiscal or legal obligations, or

benefits of the County libraries as members of FRL will need to be identified and renegotiated by
Macon County.

11. Any materials or equipment belonging to the Fontana Region Library would need to be returned or

12.

purchased. If FRL was disbanded the assets and liabilities would be divided by the remaining
counties.

Dissolution - If FRL is dissolved, representatives from the three counties in FRL, the current
regional director, and a representative of State Library of North Carolina will form the committee
to determine the distribution of resources and assets.

SERVICE CONSIDERATIONS IF MACON COUNTY WITHDRAWS FROM FRL

The FRL libraries share resources, services, and expertise. Macon County’s patrons would no longer
have access to those resources unless some reciprocal agreements were put in place.

Macon County library staff would no longer have the benefit of a wide range of collection
development experience, support, cataloging, and training.

FRL's on-site support staff would not be available to resolve Internet, broadband, and technology
problems as they occur, potentially increasing down-time for library resources.

Consortia - FRL is a member of several resource sharing consortia. Macon County would no
longer be part of those arrangements and their patrons would lose access to all those resources.
FRL belongs to the e-iNC Consortium and Macon County would need to find a new consortium and
repurchase all eResources (eBooks, eAudio, and eMagazines).









11(E). County Attorney Eric Ridenour has prepared an Offer to Purchase
Agreement in connection with the 3.76-acre tract of county-owned land
located at 388 Bethel Church Road in Franklin, a copy of which is included
in the packet. A buyer has offered to purchase the property for $55,350,
with the understanding that the county must comply with the upset bid
process required by state statute and that a higher bid could be received.
With that in mind, Mr. Ridenour has also prepared a Resolution Accepting
Bid and Authorization of Upset Bid Process for Sale of Surplus Property for
the board’s consideration, a copy of which is also included in the packet.
Mr. Ridenour can offer further details and answer any questions at the
meeting.

11(F). County Manager Derek Roland will initiate a discussion regarding
the proposed purchase of property located at 195 Wayah Street in Franklin.
Per Mr. Roland:

Upon receiving consensus from the Macon County Board of Commissioners to negotiate for the purchase
of property located at 195 Wayah Street, Franklin NC 28734, and upon receiving further consensus to
accept the negotiated offer, the following actions which constitute this acceptance must be ratified by the
Macon County Board of Cominissioners,

Ratification of action(s)
* Disbursement of $100,000 in refundable earnest money to the trust fund of Ridenour
and Goss PA.
* 510,000 in non-refundable due diligence money to Collins and Collins PA., to be paid to

the seller.

In connection with the agreement to purchase the property located at 195 Wayah Street Franklin, NC
28734, being more particularly described as PIN#’s 6594078281 and 6594170017 by the Macon County
Tax Office.

Additional Considerations for April 11, 2023:

Budget Amendment- Administration will recommend approval of a budget amendment to set aside the
agreed upon purchase price for the 195 Wayah Street property.

* Appropriate $1,350,000 from General Fund Balance to be set aside for the purchase of
the property located at 195 Wayah Street Franklin, NC 28734, being more particularly
described as PIN#'s 6594078281 and 6594170017 by the Macon County Tax Office.

Mr. Roland can elaborate further at the meeting.

I1{G). HR and Safety Director Mike Decker will be requesting approval
of a revised Vehicle/Equipment Policy, a copy of which is included in the
packet. The revised policy has been thoroughly reviewed and is now
recommended by the county’s Safety Committee and has also been




reviewed by Mr. Ridenour.  The primary revisions include the
implementation of Motor Vehicle Records (MVRs) checks for all county
employees annually and pre-employment checks for new hires, and the
implementation of an Accident Review Board. These revisions have been
made at the request of Travelers Insurance, our property and liability
insurance carrier. Mr. Decker can elaborate on this item in more detail at
the meeting, including a request to have an effective date of July 1, 2023 for
the revised policy.

11(H). Mr. Decker will also request that the county approve an update to the
Records Retention and Disposition Schedules issued by the North Carolina
Department of Natural and Cultural Resources (DNCR). There are two
items involved here — one is the General Records Schedule for Local
Government Agencies, and the other is the Program Records Schedule for
Local Government Agencies, and the county is required to adhere to these
schedules. Included in the packet are the cover pages for each schedule, an
executive summary of each, and documents for each that need to be signed
by the county manager and board chairman and returned to the state. The
Department of Social Services and the Health Department are governed by
other schedules and are not included under these guidelines. Upon approval

by the board, the full schedules will be forwarded to all of the other county
department heads for use in determining how either or both schedules apply
to their function, as public records may only be destroyed with the consent
of DNCR. If any member would like a hard copy of either or both schedules,
those can be provided — but they were not included in the packet as each is
approximately 100 pages in length.

11(I). The National Association of Counties (NACo) is urging counties
nationwide to adopt a proclamation in association with National County
Government Month in April. A draft proclamation will be included in the
packet for the board’s consideration.










STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this the £ day ;@ﬂ{_, 2022~ by and
between Macon County, a North Carolina Body Politic and Corpotate, and Snobar,
LLC , hereinafter “Developer™,

WITNESSETTI:

THAT WIIEREAS, Macon County has an Crdinance known as the “Macon
County Subdivision Ordinance” and the same was originally adopted on or about June 2,
2008, effective September 1, 2008, and the same has been amended and restated on

October 12, 2021 (herein “Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS § 159.24 of said Ordinance and G.S. 160D-804.1 provides for
performance guarantees at the time the plat is recorded to assure successful completion of
required improvements to a subdivision; and

WHEREAS in accordance with Macon County Subdivision Ordinance § 159.24
and G.S. 160D-804.1(1) does require a Subdivider to obtain a performance guarantee
which means any of the following: a) surety bond issued by a company authorized to do
business in this State; b) letter of credit issued by any financial institution licensed to do
business in this State; and c) other form of guarantee that provides equivalent security to a
surety bond or letter of credit; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Macon County Subdivision Ordinance § 159.24
and G.S. 160D-804.1(3), the performance guarantee shall be in the amount of 125% of
the reasonably estimated cost of completion at the time the performance guarantee is
issued; and

WHEREAS, Developer, in compliance with § 159.24 of the Macon County
Subdivision Ordinance and G.S. 160D-804.1, desires to enter into such an agreement with
Macon County to complete all required improvements for Phase III Section 1 of
Gemstone Village Subdivision in Macon County, North Carolina, and does specifically
agree to fully complete the following improvements to such subdivision as shown on
attached Exhibit A, the same being incorporated herein by reference as if more fully set
forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Developer agrees {o cause a performance guarantee in the amount of
$_189,185.00_, as set forth in attached Exhibit B and in favor of Macon County in
accordance with the provisions of the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance at the time
the plat is recorded; and-



WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to

memorialize their agreement and to comply with the Ordinance above-referenced.

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING AND THE

COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES HERETO DO AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1.

That in order to comply with the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance,
Developer does hereby agree with Macon County to fully complete all of the
improvements shown on attached Exhibit A, the same being incorporated herein
by reference as if more fully set forth herein to the reasonable satisfaction of
Macon County in councction with and to Phasc TIT Scction 1 of Gomstons
Village Subdivision in Macon County, North Carolina, and in accordance with the
terms of the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance referenced hereinabove.

That in order to comply with the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance,
Developer does hereby agree to secure a performance bond in the form as set forth
in attached Exhibit B, the same being incorporated herein by reference, in the
amount of §_189,185.00__ in connection with Phase XIT Section 1 of Gemstone
Village Subdivision in Macon County, North Carolina, in order to insure the
completion of the iinprovements as shown on attached Exhibit A, the same being
incorporated herein by reference, to the reasonable satisfaction of Macon County
and in accordance with the terins of the Macon County Subdivision Ordinance
referenced hereinabove,

That the parties agree to and confirm the recitals set forth hereinabove.

This Agreement is made and entered into the day and year first above written.

Macon County

>4%\ 4

Attest:

Chairman, Macon County
Board of County Commissioners

P

Clerk to the Board

( County Seal )




n

(_){_,n -_OIQM

— e

oLl Cic T hamac i, Inosfen_

Authorized Reprgsentative,

Developer

Us ok ﬁawm@

“‘“‘“ill "
S
<
o
\-;O
o
l
""‘ln szanasad

e..
........

)

& ‘\\k
E’
C-
2
"4

l"‘,
""uuum\‘




LOTECO Jdd INIWAYG
MOHHD ‘HLIW LNEWAYG
D11 ¥YVdONS X8 dIvd

\%JO 00- THONYEO
‘ 00 S8TI68T *JIATITAEY LWY
00°"S8T68T TOHHEANTL LAY

0o* INTYI, 2SIa
00" : SINZHLSNLTY
00" *QIVd LSTHALNI
00'SBI6BT :qIv¥d TYdTONTIHNd
................. STYLOL-=========r~=====

INSWAYd SNOENYITEOSIW
‘and Tyd CZ/ET/10 fLA 449

1 LNMLS OOV I
00" S8T68T 'QIVd IWWY  TTOT/SW  fUR/4AL
sTvd AFNdG TEBGLT -Hido=d

SuTbbTal NYATO
bSIST  TAWIL
000000000 :HIAWOLSAD ZT/ET/TO *3INd

PELBE DN NITDINTYI
LATELE NIVH LSEM S
ALNOOD NOOWH

LATHDEY AYYHHNS LHNEWHAYd



Y Yest Main Street
Frank!ln. NC 28734

SNOBAR, LLC ;
PO HOX 61 :
FRANKLWJNC28744

'.—1.‘:'— LT
luskvanbﬁ: OGHABHRL

=
Tl‘ls dssbursame has been approved.as requ T
by the Local Govemnment Budget and Fiscal Control Act,

Macon County, 5West ‘Main Street Franklm NC 28734 B

008 §S9L0EN

Licd00024B1I200002L,5029 20

-l T '_-_“ FRUEERS

-66319405

Ihioice Dale | EEFIVoIRE Number?&@ i R ﬁln\.;mce‘lﬁ\mountgi
.|07119/2022'| 07122022-A REFUND SURETY BOND PHASE 141 . $114,383.00
- {07/19/2022 | 07122022 REFUND SURETY BOND PHASE ‘1 i 3373 117 00
. ) .‘ * . . ~: ' . ‘ :\ . -.: 1 -, :
: . ".‘ . C ‘. g e o .
e VendorNa, |t T Vendor,Name i










Vaya Health. Please check this email and any attachments for the presence of viruses. Vaya Health accepts no liability for
any loss or damage arising from the use of this email or attachments.









STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

OFFER TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT
THIS OFFER TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between
MACON COUNTY hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, and CCJS, LLC, a North Carolina
Limited Liability Company, as “Buyer”.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of that 3.76 +/- acre tract of real property with a physical
address of 388 Bethel Church Rd, Frankiin, NC bearing PIN# 7504-48-4670 and more particularly
described in Book V-23, Page 655 of the Macon County Registry; and

WHEREAS, Buyer has offered to purchase the above described property for $55,350,
which the County Commissioners have resolved is a fair and acceptable price; and

WHEREAS, Buyer is aware that Seller is required to comply with the Upset Bid Process
of the Sale of Public Lands pursuant to NCGS 160A-269.

NOW THEREFORE, the acceptable Terms of the Purchase are as follows:

1. The Purchase Price shall be $55,350, unless a higher bid is received by the County during
the Upset Bid period.

2. Buyer is required to deposit the sum of 5% of the bid ($276.75) in certified funds with
the Macon County Finance Office, ¢/o Ms. Lori Carpenter, 5 W. Main St. Franklin, NC 28734
with the acceptance of this Offer by the Seller.

3. The County shall comply with the Upset Bid Procedure of NCGS 160A-269. Any upset
bids received by the County within the 10 days set forth in the Notice of Proposed Sale in the local
newspaper shall be required to raise the bid by a minimum of 10% for the first one thousand dollars

and 3% of the remainder. By way of example, the first upset bid made shall raise the bid by a
minimum of $2,817.50 or $58,167.50.

4. Closing shall take place within 30 days after the Completion of the Upset Bid Process
as set forth in NCGS 160A-269.

5. The property shall be conveyed by Special Warranty Deed.






STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BID and
AUTHORIZATION OF UPSET BID PROCESS FOR SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160A-269 permits the County of Macon to sell
property by advertisement and upset bids after receipt of an offer for property has been made;
and

WHEREAS, the County has received an Offer to Purchase the property described as that 3.76 +/-
acre tract of real property with a physical address of 388 Bethel Church Rd, Franklin, NC
bearing PIN# 7504-48-4670 and more particularly described in Book V-23, Page 655 of the
Macon County Registry for the purchase price of $55,350.00.

THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF MACON COUNTY, NORTH
CAROLINA RESOLVES THAT:

1. The Board of Commissionets authorizes sale of the Property pursuant to the upset bid
procedure set forth in North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269.

2, The Clerk to the Board shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published. The
notice shall describe the Property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the terms
under which the offer may be upset.

3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a qualifying
increased bid to the office of the Finance Director within ten (10) days after the notice
of sale is published.

4, If a qualifying increased bid is received, the Clerk to the Board shall cause a new notice
of upset bid to be published, and shall continue to do so until the 10 day period has
passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received. At that time, the amount
of the final high bid shall be reported to the County Board of Commissioners,

5. A qualifying increased bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent
(10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that
offer.

6. A qualifying increased bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five

percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made to the Clerk to the Board in cash,
cashier’s check, certified check, or other immediately available funds. The County will
return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject
to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received. The County will return, or credit the
deposit of the final high bidder at closing.



7. The procedure set out herein shall be repeated until no further qualifying upset bids are
received, at which time the Board of County Commissioners may accept the offer and
sell the property to the highest bidder. The Board of County Commissioners may at any
time reject any and all offers and/or withdraw the property from sale prior to the approval
of the final high offer.

8. The buyer must pay with cash, or other good funds, at the time of closing, if and when
the tinal high offer is approved by the Macon County Board of Commissioners.

9. The appropriate County officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary to
convey the Property to the highest bidder if and when the County Board of
Commissioners approves the offer from the final high bidder.

Adopted this 11" day of April, 2023

MACON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Paul Higdon
Chairman of the Macon County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Derck Roland, Clerk to the Board
(SEAL)



Macon County
Vehicle/Equipment Policy

1. Purpose

This policy establishes uniform vehicle/equipment use practices for all county employees and
Departments to ensure safe and efficient use of public property, with the exception of Macon
Transit Authority employees. Transit Authority employees shall be subject to the Macon
County Transit policy.

II.  Overview

Certain employees in various departments may be required to use/operate county
vehicles/equipment during work hours. County vehicles/equipment are assigned to one or
more employees for their primary use during the workday. At the end of the workday, all
county vehicles/equipment are to be parked in their assigned parking area unless specifically
exempted by the Department Director.

I1l. Procedure

Overnight Assignment:

Authorized employees may use county vehicles overnight when the best interest of the public
is served by providing county employees with safe, dependable transportation for extensive
travel during or after working hours, for after-hours response to emergency requests for
service, or for an approved, official purpose as determined by the Department Head.
Authorization for use of county vehicles overnight may be granted by the Department Head to
specified employees based on the following criteria:

A. Employees whose regular duties require frequent use of a county vehicle
overnight and whose responsibilities involve emergency response, after-hours
response, evening and weekend duties, public meetings, or other business
activities,

B. Employees assigned to stand-by duty who are subject to call or who respond to
service requests.

C. Employees on temporary overnight assignment by his/her Department Director
for emergencies or an approved, official purpose.

D. Employees expected to respond when called after hours unless specifically
excused due to authorized leave.

IV. Usage

A. County vehicles/equipment shall be used for official county business only.



B. County vehicles shall not be used for the convenience of the employee with regard
to transportation needs or other non-business activities, other than commuting or
de Minimis personal use (such as a stop for a personal errand between a business
delivery and the employee’s home).

C. Alcoholic beverages are not permitted in county vehicles/equipment at any time;
however, law enforcement personnel may transport lawfully confiscated alcoholic
beverages.

D. The use of tobacco, in any form, and the use of vape devices or electronic cigarettes
is prohibited in county-owned vehicles/equipment.

E. Hands-free operation of cell phones and other mobile devices (i.e. navigation
devices) is required while operating county-owned vehicles/equipment. Operation
of a cell phone or other mobile device to send or read text messages, emails, or
typing multiple letters or text in the device while driving is illegal in North Carolina
(NCGS 20-137.4A) except by law enforcement officers, firefighters, or ambulance
drivers while performing their official duties.

F. Each Department Director shall maintain a list of county vehicles/equipment
assigned for overnight use, and provide the Garage Supervisor and County Manager
with that list upon request. This list must include the driver’s name and driver’s
license number.

G. County vehicles shall not be driven to an out-of-county residence if used by an
employee for commuting to and from work unless specifically authorized by the
Director of Human Resources

H. The Department Director of each department shall report to the Garage Supervisor
the mileage of each county vehicle annually or upon request. The Department
Director shall immediately notify the Garage Supervisor and County Manager of
any driver changes to assigned vehicles. Failure to report mileage and driver
changes may result in the revocation of an assigned vehicle.

Driver’s Responsibilities
A. Employees shall operate county vehicles/equipment in a safe and courteous
manner.

B. Employees shall not exceed the speed limit unless in pursuit or emergency. Seat
belts shall be worn by the driver and all passengers at all times during the
operation of county vehicles/equipment unless providing emergency care to a
passenger (such as in an ambulance).



C. Non-county employees are not allowed to operate or ride in a county-owned
vehicle/equipment without prior approval from the Human Resources Director.
Non-county employees may accompany County employees in County cars
when they have a business interest in the travel and if they are covered by
workmen’s compensation by their employer with approval of the Human
Resources Director. Due to insurance limitations and regulations no other
passengers are permitted unless operating in an official capacity. Note:
Student interns are permitted as a passenger, and the Sheriff’s Department,
Emergency Medical Services Department, Emergency Management
Department, and Department of Social Services are exempt from this when
providing emergency assistance to citizens.

D. Employees driving county vehicles/equipment are required to have a current
driver’s license as required by North Carolina General Statutes, regardiess of
whether the employee drives the county vehiclefequipment on a regular,
temporary or occasional basis.

E. Violations, citations, fines, and other actions taken by any police jurisdiction
against any employee while driving a county vehicle/equipment shall be the
responsibility of the employee and may be cause for disciplinary action by the
county,

F. Employees shall notify his/her department director of any points incurred on
their driver’s license for situations including, but not limited to, accidents,
speeding tickets, driving under the influcnce, and driver’s license suspensions
or revocations. Department Director shall forward the information to the
County Manager.

G. Employees shall not drive county-owned vehicles/equipment if they are using
alcoholic beverages or prescription and/or non-prescription drugs which may
impair driving ability.

H. An employee must report to the designated testing site for alcohol and drug
testing immediately following an accident or be subject to termination. The
primary and preferred testing site is Macon County Public Health located at
1830 Lakeside Drive, Franklin, NC (828-349-2081). The secondary testing site
is Smoky Mountain Urgent Care located at 195 Franklin Plaza, Franklin, NC
(828-634-7745). After hours or when neither the primary nor secondary testing
sites are available, the employee shall report to the Emergency Department at
Angel Medical Center located at One Center Court, Franklin, NC (828-524-
8411).

. Employees assigned county-owned vehicles shall take proper care of the
interior and exterior appearance and servicing of county-owned vehicles at the
scheduled times and/or every 5,000 miles. Failure to do so may result in






histories shall be obtained to confirm or deny a possible license suspension,
revocation or conviction(s) for accidents and/or motor vehicle violations. A poor
driving history or failure to report a driving citation issued to a County employee
may result in termination, demotion, or suspension of County driving privileges.

E. Call a meeting of the Accident Review Board within 60 days of an accident
involving a county-owned vehicle/equipment.

The Department of Human Resources may indiscriminately select employees occupying safety-
sensitive positions (drivers, medical care providers, law enforcement officers, heavy equipment
operators, etc.) and/or the performance of their job duties require driving on a regular basis who
operate county-owned vehicles or heavy equipment to undergo random drug testing. The Macon
County Human Resources Department may select employees on a random basis.

Macon County Department Directors shall:

A. Acquire and provide to the Safety Officer or Human Resources Director with
proof of insurance and proof of an active, current driver’s license for any employee who
receives reimbursement for personal vehicle mileage. An employee’s personal vehicle
insurance is the primary coverage in the event an employee has an accident while
performing his/her duties as a Macon County Employee in their personal vehicle. Macon
County’s insurance policy acts as the secondary coverage once the limits are met under
an employee’s policy.

B. Administer this County Policy properly in regard to all county vehicles/equipment
in his or her department. The method for financing the fleet will be an annual decision
made by the Finance Director and the Garage Supervisor and taken to the Board of
County Commissioners for approval. It is the intention that once vehicles/equipment are
assigned, they remain with the position based on the justification for the
vehicle/equipment. If high mileage is an issue, replacement arrangements will be made
in advance of the acquisition.

VII. Violations

Violations of this policy are considered a misuse of county property. Employees misusing or
abusing county-owned vehicles/equipment may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action,
up to and inciuding dismissal.

VIIl. Need-Based Approvals
A. County Departments must justify the need for a county-owned vehicle based on
whether a vehicle will be used a minimum of 12,000 miles per year. The cost

benefit of paying an employee mileage for use of the personal vehicle versus use of a
county-owned vehicle must be documented before a county-owned vehicle is considered.

B. Evaluation of the ongoing need for county-owned vehicles/equipment assigned to a

5



department will be made on an annual basis before bidding for new county
vehicles/equipment.

C. The County Board of Commissioners must approve all new vehicle/equipment purchases
and requests for a vehicle/equipment from the surplus list when that vehicle/equipment
increases the fleet assigned to a department.

D. Public Safety and special use vehicles/equipment required for a specitic job function will
be considered based on need, usage, and cost-benefits over the life of the
vehicle/equipment versus mileage limitations.

E. Each Department Director shall send the Garage Supervisor a written request for a
vehicle/equipment to be classified as “special use” (a vehicle/equipment used for one
purpose such as a wrecker). If the request is granted, the vehicle/equipment shall be coded
as “special use” in the vehicle/equipment maintenance program.

F. The County Manager may, at the request of the Garage Supervisor, remove or recall
any county vehicle/equipment from a department for one of the following;

1. The vehicle/equipment does not meet the minimum mileage
requirements,
excluding “special use” vehicles/equipment.

2. Vehicle/equipment abuse, which includes but is not limited to,
inadequate care or maintenance and damage to a vehicle/fequipment
caused by disregard or improper use.

3. The termination of an employee or position with an assigned
vehicle/equipment that will not be replaced within a reasonable
time period.

4. A Department Director may submit a written request to the Garage
Supervisor to justify retention of a vehicle/equipment removed or
recalled because of underutilization.

5. Exemptions must be considered prior to removing or recalling a
county-owned vehicle/equipment from a department based on
funding guidelines used in purchasing the vehicle/equipment (such
as grants, state funding, etc.)

G. A Department shall turn in the old vehicle/equipment before receiving a replacement
vehicle/equipment to prevent unnecessary growth of the fleet. Any exception to this
policy requires approval by the County Board of Commissioners.

H. A Department Director shall complete a vehicle/equipment change form in the Garage
Services Department for action needed such as purchase, sale, disposal, or transfer of
vehicle/equipment.



IX. Accidents
A. Macon County shall have an accident Review Board, comprised of the following
individuals to evaluate all accidents involving a Macon County-owned
vehicle/equipment. The purpose of the Vehicle Safety Review Board shall be:

1. To establish a fair and impartial review system for all vehicular
accidents involving County employees resulting in injuries
and/or property damage. With the primary objective being to
improve the overall safety of County operations.

2. To establish the cause for each reviewed accident, and determine

whether preventable or non-preventable.

To establish uniformity of discipline.

4. To make recommendations for corrective action to Department
Directors, County Manager and/or the County Board of
Commissioners.

[F]

B. The Accident Review Board will include:

Co-Chairpersons:

Safety Officer

Garage Supervisor

Members:

Sheriff*s Department Safety Officer
Human Resources Director
Emergency Services Director
Health Director

Transit Director

Risk Management

Three (3) Regular Non-Exempt Employees

C. The Vehicle Accident Review Board shall be convened within sixty (60) days of
the date of the accident and shall review the investigating officer’s report, the
employee’s statement and other information prior to hearing an oral presentation
by the employee.

D) At the time of the hearing, the employee may wish to present supporting material or
witnesses to help in his/her defense.

E) The review and consideration of an accident by the Board will include the
following elements:

* The past driving record of the employee

¢ The report of the investigating officer

* Oral presentation by the employee

* Supporting materials or testimony of witnesses



F) Ifit is clear that the employee is not at fault and could not have prevented the
accident, the Board may rule the accident non-preventable and it will not be
charged (See Points chart) to the employee.

() Deciston of the Board

Upon reviewing all the details of the accident and meeting with the employee in
question, the Accident Review Board shall meet privately to reach a decision. When a
majority decision has been reached by the Board, the decision will be communicated to
the department/agency head. If the board decides that the driver was at fault or he/she
displayed unsatisfactory job performance, it will be the department/agency director’s
responsibility to see that the decision is carried out according to the Macon County
Personnel Policy.

This policy shall be effective beginning July 1, 2023.

Adopted this the day of , 2023
Derek Roland, Manager Paul Higdon, Chairman
Macon County Macon County Board of Commissioners



RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION
SCHEDULE

GENERAL RECORDS SCHEDULE:
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

Issued By:

Higne
FEME  NC DEPARTMENT OF
mEzmA NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources
Division of Archives and Records
Government Records Section

October 1, 2021



CONTENTS

APDTOVAL sttt s b s et et bt s et e e et et b s ee s et e et eess e eeee e iv
Front Matter

EXCCULIVE SUMMEBIY .ottt e e et ensesessse st st see s svs s e s e e v
Legend fOr RECOIdS SChEAUIE...........oceuecuceceeec et cons e s e st teeees e eeeeens Vi

Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

Standard 1: Administration and Management RECOTAS ..........oovvverereeereeeeonsseseseseseeeeeseeeeeeesesss. 1
Standard 2: Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll RECOTS........veeereeeerrereessreeeessesesseesss e eesees e 23
Standard 3: Geographic Information SYStemM RECOTUS ......ocevverversivereeereessreseerstsseeeooeees oo ssas 36
Standard 4: HUMaN ReSOUICES RECOTTS .....uuiuueieeircesiieeeseseresesoremnessesssesssssssssssesesseseeeeeesenessesses. 43
Standard 5: Information Technology RECOIAS ....u.uivieiueerrsreesseeieieessiessseesssotssseesesseseeesesesessnea. 61
Standard 6: Legal RECOIUS. . cucurururirernieinseseieecesseeeseesesssesessrsssesessssesseeersssssenesesenseesossseseesnens 67
Standard 7: Public Relations RECOIUS vvurremerereiiicecioscessieecressseserssseeseessst e ees st e s ess s eee e 75
Standard 8: Risk Management RECOTTS......uvurummrerererresmmremseeeecssienmesssresensessessesssssssseesesenesssese oo, 30
Standard 9: Workforce Development RECOIAS i rerionerecssresestesessssrsee e seeeseesass 86
Appendix
Managing Public Records in NOrth CaroliNg ......uvicecerccesiveeerrsonesesessssssssssssssseeseeseeeese s, A-1
Audits, Litigation, and Other Official ACHON ....cccucviveeceeveerseeeeseessseeeeves s A-5
TranSItOIY RECOTAS 1.iimiiiiiciiiciieic et se s et esee s e seas s e s ees s e e e s s e eeee e eeee A-6
Destruction Of PUBIIC RECOTAS. ..uuuiuircrririecnsririierceiieeiessseesseee evsesee e eeres s st st seseeseee s seese s A-8
SaMPIe DESIIUCHIONS LOB w.vuvvrerririniriaeeeecssscesesessseessesssssssesssssessssosseneesseeesses s, A-10
Electronic Records: E-mail, Born Digital Records, and Digital IMaging .......ooveeeeeoeooosooeooos, A-11
G0SPALIAI RELCOTAS ...t seeseerena en ses e es e e e st eseee e A-13
Security Preservation COpies Of RECOITS ...vvuieeeiiiieecrieceerseererereimrerseeessstssesesesseeseeeee s A-15
DiISASTEI ASSISLANICE viviimssirrsisiscssaencrraressssesreesessssssssesssesstasasessnsesessssssssessisssssoesssenssoesssssssnes s, A-17
SEAIT THAININE 111 tvvieniiuiss st et se e et eseesees s et e s etees e e sseeneseeeeeeso e A-18
Regquest Forms
Request for Change in Records SChEUIE .....ccveirieeeiiecrccereeessessse et esseseseeeseenas A-19
Request for Disposal of Unscheduled RECOTAS ..eeemrcvreereeereesseeseeses s e es e ees A-20
Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means ..., A-21
FILE PLAN ¢ttt sttt enn e s sttt steen s eee e et s b e e e e ee e e A-22
Related Records Series in Program SChedUles.... . eeeeeereveereronra e eesee oo A-23

LB ettt e bbbttt et et e ee st s e ee et s eee e e s, A-30



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

v' Some records are covered by the Local Agency Program Retention and Disposition
Schedules. See the appendix for Related Records Series Found in Local Agency Program
Schedules.

v" According to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 121-5(b} and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132-3, you may destroy public
records only with the consent of the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources
(DNCR). The State Archives of North Carolina is the division of DNCR charged with
administering a records management program. This schedule is the primary way the State
Archives of North Carolina gives its consent. Without approving this schedule, your agency
is obligated to obtain the State Archives of North Carolina’s permission to destroy any
record, no matter how insignificant.

v’ Each records series listed on this schedule has specific disposition instructions that wili
indicate how long the series must be kept in your office. In some cases, the disposition
instructions are simply “retain in office permanently,” which means that those records
must be kept in your office forever. In other cases, the retention period may be “destroy
in office when reference value ends.” An agency may have reference copies of materials,
meaning “a copy of a record distributed to make recipients aware of the content but not
directing the recipient to take any action on the matter” (from Society of American
Archivists, Dictionary of Archives Terminology). Your agency must establish and enforce
internal policies by setting minimum retention periods for the records that the State
Archives of North Carolina has scheduled with the disposition instructions, “destroy when
reference value ends.”

v E-mail is a record as defined by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 121-5 and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132. Itisthe
content of the e-mail that is critical when determining the retention period of a particular
e-mail, including attachments, not the media in which the record was created, Itis
important for all agency employees and officials to determine the appropriate records
series for specific e-mails and retain them accord ing to the disposition instructions listed
with the identified record series.

v The State Archives of North Carolina recommends that all agency employees and officials
view the tutorials that are available online through the State Archives website in order to
familiarize themselves with records management principles and practices. The State
Archives of North Carolina’s online tutorials include topics such as records management
anhd scanning guidelines.

v The State Archives of North Carolina creates security preservation record copies for
minutes and selected other records of governing bodies and commissions, adoption
records, and maps and plats, Agencies can request copies of the digital images made
during this process. Contact the appropriate Records Management Analyst to begin this
process.



v’ If you have records that are not listed in this schedule, contact a Records Management
Analyst. An analyst will discuss the nature of the records with you to determine if the
records have historical value. If the records do not have historical value, we will ask you to
complete a Request for Disposal of Unscheduled Records (page A-20) for records that are

no longer being created.

2021 General Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies

vi



2021 General Records Schedule:
Local Government Agencies

The records retention and disposition schedules and retention periods governing the records series listed herein
are hereby approved. This approval extends to and includes the following standards in the 2021 General Records
Schedule: Local Government Agencies:

Administration and Management Records
Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll Records
Geographic Information System Records
Human Resources Records

Information Technology Records

Legal Records

Public Relations Records

Risk Management Records

Workforce Development Records

BLRNOWLEWNE

In accordance with the provisions of Chapters 121 and 132 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, it is agreed
that the records do not and will not have further use or value for official business, research, or reference purposes
after the respective retention periods specified herein and are authorized to be destroyed or otherwise disposed
of by the agency or official having custody of them without further reference to or approvaf of either party to this
agreement.

Destructions
G.S. § 121-5 authorizes the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to regulate the destruction of public
records. Furthermore, the local government agency agrees to comply with 07 NCAC 04M .0510 when deciding on a
method of destruction. The North Carolina Administrative Code states:
“(a) Paper records which have met their required retentjon requirements and are not subject to legal or other
audit holds should be destroyed in one of the following ways:
1. burned, unless prohibited by local ordinance;
2. shredded, or torn up so as to destroy the record content of the documents or
material concerned;
3. placed in acid vats so as toreduce the paper to pulp and to terminate the existence of the
documents or materials concerned; or
4. sold aswaste paper, provided that the purchaser agrees in writing that the documents or
materials concerned will not be resold without pulverizing or shredding the documents so that
the information contained within cannot be practicably read or reconstructed.
(b} When used in an approved records retention and disposition schedule, the provision that electronic records are
to be destroyed means that the data and metadata are to be overwritten, deleted, and unlinked so the data and
metadata may not be practicably reconstructed.
{c} When used in an approved records retention and disposition schedule, the provision that confidential records
of any format are to be destroyed means the data, metadata, and physical media are to be destroyed in such a
manner that the information cannot be read or reconstructed under any means.”

All local government agencies should maintain logs of their destructions either in the minutes of their governing
board or in their Records Management file. Confidential records will be destroyed in such a manner that the

records cannot be practicably read or reconstructed.

Public records, including electronic records, not listed in this schedule are not authorlzed ta be destroyed.



Audits and Litigation Actions
Records subject to audit or those legally required for ongoing official proceedings must be retained until released

from such audits or official proceedings, notwithstanding the Instructions of this schedule.

Electronic Records

All local government agencies and the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources concur that the long-term
and/or permanent preservation of electronic records requires additional commitment and active management by
the agency. Agencies agree to comply with all policies, standards, and best practices published by the Department
of Natural and Cultural Resources regarding the creation and management of electronic records.

Local government agencies should consider retention requirements and disposition authorities when designing
and implementing electronic records management systems. Any type of electronically-created or electronically-
stored Information falls under the North Carolina General Assembly’s definition of public records cited above. For
example, e-mail, text messages, blog posts, voicemalls, websites, word processing documents, spreadsheets,
databases, and PDFs all fall within this definition of public records. In addition, G.S. § 132-6.1{a) specifies:
“Databases purchased, leased, created, or otherwise acquired by every public agency containing public
records shall be designed and maintained in a manner that does not impair or impede the public agency's
ability to permit the public inspection and examination of public records and provides a means of
obtaining copies of such records, Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to require the retention by
the public agency of obsofete hardware or software.”
Local government agencies may scan any paper record and retain it electronically for ease of retrieval. If an
agency wishes to destroy the original paper records before their assigned retention periods have been met, the
agency must establish an electronic records policy, including putting Into place procedures for quality assurance
and documentation of authorization for records destructions approved by the Government Records Section. This
electronic records pelicy and releases for destruction of records must be approved by the Government Records
Section. Agencies should be aware that for the purpose of any audit, litigation, or public records request, they are
considered the records custodian obligated to produce requested records, even if said records are being
maintained electronically by an outside vendor. Therefore, contracts regarding electronically stored information
should be carefully negotiated to specify how records can be exported in case a vendor goes out of business or the
agency decides to award the contract to a different vendor.

Reference Copies
All local government agencies and the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources agree that certain records

series possess only brief administrative, fiscal, legal, research, and reference value. These records series have been
designated by retention periods that allow these records to be destroyed when “reference value ends.” Al local
government agencies hereby agree that they will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention
periods for the records that Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy
when reference value ends.” If a local government agency does not establish internal policies and retention
periods, the local government agency is not complying with the provisions of this retention schedule and is not
authorized by the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to destroy the records with the disposition
instruction “destroy when reference value ends.”

Record Copy
A record copy is defined as “The single copy of a document, often the original, that is designated as the official

copy for reference and preservation.”! The record copy is the one whose retention and disposition is mandated by
this schedule; all additional copies are considered reference or access copies and can be destroyed when their
usefulness expires. [n some cases, postings to soclal media may be unofficial copies of information that is captured
elsewhere as a record copy (e.g., a press release about an upcoming agency event that is copied to various social
media platforms). Appropriately retaining record copies and disposing of reference copies requires agencies to

! Society of American Archivists, Dictionory of Archives Terminology.

2021 General Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies



designate clearly what position or office is required to maintain an official record for the duration of its
designated retention period.

Transitory Records
Transitory records are defined as “record([s] that [have] little or no documentary or evidential value and that need

not be set aside for future use.”?

North Carolina has a broad definition of public records. However, the Department of Matural and Cultural
Resources recognizes that some records may have little or no long-term documentary or evidential value to the
creating agency. These records are often called transitory records. They may be disposed of according to the
guidance below. However, all public employees should be familiar with their appropriate retention schedule and
any other applicable guidelines for their office. If there is a required retention period for these records, that
requirement must be followed. When in doubt about whether a record is transitory or whether it has special
significance or importance, retain the record in question and seek guidance from a DNCR records analyst.

Routing slips and transmittal sheets adding no information to that contained in the transmitted material have
minimal value after the material has been successfully transmitted. These records may be destroyed or otherwise
disposed of after receipt of the material has been confirmed. Similarly, “while you were out” slips, memory aids,
and other records requesting follow-up actions (including voicemails and calendar invites) have minimal value once
the official action these records are supporting has been completed and documented. These records may be
destroyed or otherwise disposed of once the action has been resolved.

Drafts and working papers, including notes and calculations, are materials gathered or created to assist in the
creation of another record. All drafts and working papers are public records subject to al! provisions of Chapter
132 of the General Statutes, but many of them have minimal value after the final version of the record has been
approved, and may be destroyed after final approval, if they are no longer necessary to support the analysis or
conclusions of the official record. Drafts and working documents that may be destroyed after final approval
include:
* Drafts and working papers for internal and external policies
e Drafts and working papers for internal administrative reports, such as daily and monthly
activity reports;
o Drafts and working papers for internal, non-policy-level documents, such as informal workflows and
manuals; and
o Drafts and working papers for presentations, workshops, and other explanations of agency policy that is
already formafly documented.

Forms used solely to create, update, or modify records in an electronic medium may be destroyed in office after
completion of data entry and after all verification and quality control procedures, so long as these records are not
required for audit or legal purposes. However, if the forms contain any analog components that are necessary to
validate the information contained on them (e.g., a signature or notary’s seal), they must be retained according to
the disposition instructions for the records series encompassing the forms’ function.

? Ibid.

2021 General Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies i



it is further agreed that these records may not be destroyed prior te the time periods stated; however, for
sufficient reason they may be retained for Jonger periods, This schedute supersedes previous versions of this
schedule and any localized amendments; It is to remain In effect from the date of approval until it is reviewed and
updated. .

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED
T N
Municipal/County Clerk or Manager Sarah E. Koonts, Director
Title: Division of Archives and Records
APPROVED

/PR

Head of Governing Body D. Reid Wilson, Secretary
Title: Department of Natural and Cultural
Resources

Municipality/County:

Effective: October 1, 2021

2021 General Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies



RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION
SCHEDULE

PROGRAM RECORDS SCHEDULE:
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

Issued By:

ot o b T
Eg NC DEPARTMENT OF
gégg NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources
Division of Archives and Records
Government Records Section

October 1, 2021



CONTENTS

ADBIOVAL. ..ottt ecs ettt e s bbbt st e ee e e sttt et st eee s eeee s iv
Front Matter

EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY....cviriisemuesiisciiscianietieessens st sssnssssiestseseesseseressssesssseessesesssossaseneeese e esseseo e v
Legend for RECOrds SChedUIE...........cvrrrnreeee s eeeeseere s ene e ss st eeeeee e eee Vi

Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

Standard 10: Airport AUTNOTIEY RECOITS ....vurureriveiecreesinneceemssrersessssesseses st s e eeeseeeesessss s 1
Standard 11: AniMal SErvICeS RECOTTS ...vuruermrrivsssirsiaeesisreeeeeeossmmessseessseess seesesseeseseeeessssssseesos 3
Standard 12: Code Enforcement and INSPection RECOIdS. ... eeceereensreiisemee oo ssoeeeeeseesens 5
standard 13: Emergency Medical Services and Fire Department REcords.......vommemoeoson, 12
Standard 14: Parks and Recreation RECOTUS....uueurireesisiueeereossmmsssessessesssessssssssssenseeeses s sessenss 16
Standard 15: Planning and Regulation of Development RECOIAS ...ewenmmimereoeoeoeeooeoe 19
Standard 16: Public Housing Authorities, Redevejopment Commissions, and Entitlement
COMMUNILIES RECOIUS ... vuuiuiuieiiiiesrerenneesnreariese s e eseseesssarsssee s es e ss st s e s, 25
Standard 17: Public Transportation SYStemS RECOIAS .....wu..veeeeeersoeoe et st eeees e 31
Standard 18: Public Utilities and Environmental/Waste Management Records ..., 34
Standard 19: Street Maintenance, Public Works, and Engineering Records ........ooomnn... 46
Standard 20: Law Enforcement Records {excluding Sheriff’s Ofice) ..., 53
standard 21: Tax Records {for municipalities] ........cevervveereeeeeccenieeresesseees oot 73
Appendix
Managing Public Records in NOrth Caroling ve....ecceeeececrreeseeesiesmniesecesss oo e eeeses oo A-1
Audits, Litigation, and Other Official ACHIONS ......c.cveeeevrecorimreeeeeeeeeeesesces s eoeeseseoes oo eeesm e A-5
Transitory RECOIAS vttt en e in e sre s st e et se e A-6
Destruction of PUBLIC RECOITS......c.cviierinirisistirens e esaceeessssnes e esss et eeees e eeeeeeeeseeseess e A-8
SaMPlE DESTIUCLIONS LOE w.uvvuvecerronsernmnneirenseese s ieeseseeseseesssssessensses s ssssesessee s s, A-10
Electronic Records: E-mai, Born Digital Records, and Digital IMaging v......ovveoseeeoooooeoooeeson A-11
GeOSPALIAl RECOIAS .oviiiriecuireciiiemiesiisinee e evssssassae s tssaese st ssseesesesseses s s st seeeese e A-13
Security Preservation RECOrd CODIES .. .umumummernrriirmnieesrirrceseseseessensesasesssesessssssssseseeseesseseseses s, A-15
DiISASTET ASSISTANCE w.uvvivrniseirsticsiieeseesere s sesaeseses o s s s asesseseseess s st seeee st e seesssesess s A-17
SEAf TrAINING ettt s ce s eeeeess e e st seeee e e A-18
Request Forms
Request for Change in Records SChedUIE ...........ovuvieeeeeeeere oo, A-19
Reguest for Disposal of Unscheduled RECOIdS........oveeeeeeeeeemoreeeeee oo A-20
Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means ......o........ A-21
FHE PLAN ettt st et ettt sees e A-22
BUEX et bbbt e s s e e ettt ses et ee e e e e e A-23

2021 Program Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

¥ Some records are covered by the Generaf Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies and,
therefore, are not listed separately here.

v" According to N.C, Gen. Stat. § 121-5(b) and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132-3, you may destroy public records
only with the consent of the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources (DNCR). The State
Archives of North Carolina is the division of DNCR charged with administering a records
management program. This schedule is the primary way the State Archives of North Carolina gives
its consent. Without approving this schedule, your agency is obligated to obtain the State Archives
of North Carolina’s permission to destroy any record, no matter how insignificant.

¥" Each records series listed on this schedule has specific disposition instructions that will indicate
how long the series must be kept in your office. In some cases, the disposition instructions are
simply “retain in office permanently,” which means that those records must be kept in your office
forever. In other cases, the retention period may be “destroy in office when reference value ends.”
An agency may have reference copies of materials, meaning “a copy of a record distributed to
make recipients aware of the content but not directing the recipient to take any action on the
matter” (from Society of American Archivists, Dictionary of Archives Terminology). Your agency
must establish and enforce internal policies by setting minimum retention periods for the records
that the State Archives of North Carolina has scheduled with the disposition instructions, “destroy
when reference value ends.”

¥ E-mail is a record as defined by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 121-5 and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132. Itis the content
of the e-mail that is critical when determining the retention period of a particular e-mail, including
attachments, not the media in which the record was created. Itis important for all agency
employees and officials to determine the appropriate records series for specific e-mails and retain
them according to the disposition instructions listed with the identified record series,

¥" The State Archives of North Carolina recommends that all agency empioyees and officials view the
tutorials that are available-online through the State Archives website in order to familiarize
themselves with records management principles and practices. The State Archives of North
Carolina’s online tutorials include topics such as records management and scanning guidelines.

v" The 5tate Archives of North Carolina creates security preservation record copies for minutes and
selected other records of governing bodies and commissions, adoption records, and maps and
plats. Agencies can request copies of the digital images made during this process. Contact the
appropriate Records Management Analyst to begin this process.

v If you have records that are not listed in this schedule, contact a Records Management Analyst. An
analyst will discuss the nature of the records with you to determine if the records have historical
value. If the records do not have historical value, we will ask you to complete a Request for
Disposal of Unscheduled Records (page A-19) for records that are no longer being created.

2021 Program Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies Y



Program Records Schedule:
Local Government Agencies

The records retention and disposition schedules and retention periods governing the records series listed herein are
hereby approved. This approval extends to and includes the following standards in the 2021 Program Records
Schedule: Local Government Agencles:

10. Airport Authority Records
11.Animal Services Records

12.Code Enforcement and Inspection Records

13.Emergency Medical Services and Fire Department Records
14.Parks and Recreation Records

15.Planning and Regulation of Development Records

16.Public Housing Authorities, Redevelopment Commissions, and Entitlement Communities Records
17.Public Transportation Systems Records

18.Public Utilities and Environmental/Waste Management Records
19.5treet Maintenance, Public Works, and Engineering Records
20.Law Enforcement Records (excluding Sheriff's Offices)

21.Tax Records (for municipalities)

In accordance with the provisions of Chapters 121 and 132 of the General Statutes of North Caroling, it is agreed
that the records do not and will not have further use or value for official business, research, or reference purposes
after the respective retention periods specified herein and are authorized to be destroyed or otherwise disposed of
by the agency or official having custody of them without further reference to or approval of either party to this
agreement.

Destructions
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 121-5 authorizes the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to regulate the destruction of
public records. Furthermore, the local government agency agrees to comply with 07 NCAC 04M .0510 when deciding
on a method of destruction. The North Carolina Administrative Code states:
“(a) Paper records which have met their required retention requirements and are not subject to legal or other audit
holds should be destroyed in one of the following ways:
1. burned, uniess prohibited by local ordinance;
2. shredded, or torn up so as to destroy the record content of the documents or
material concerned;
3. placed in acid vats so as to reduce the paper to pulp and to terminate the existence of the
documents or materials concerned; or
4. sold as waste paper, provided that the purchaser agrees in writing that the documents or materials
concerned will not be resold without pulverizing or shredding the documents so that the
information contained within cannot be practicably read or reconstructed.
(b} When used in an approved records retention and disposition schedule, the provision that electronic records are
to be destroyed means that the data and metadata are to be overwritten, deleted, and unlinked so the data and
metadata may not be practicably reconstructed.
{c} When used in an approved records retention and disposition schedule, the provision that confidential records of
any format are to be destroyed means the data, metadata, and physical media are to be destroyed in such a manner
that the information cannot be read or reconstructed under any means.”

All local government agencies should maintain logs of their destructions either in the minutes of their governing

board or in their Records Management file. Confidential records will be destroyed in such a manner that the records
cannct be practicably read or reconstructed.

2021 Program Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies i



Public records, including electronic records, not listed In this schedule are not authorized to be destroyed.

Audits and Litigation Actions

Records subject to audit or those legally required for ongoing official proceedings must be retained until released
from such audits or official proceedings, notwithstanding the instructions of this schedule.

Electronic Records

Alllocal government agencies and the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources concur that the Jong-term
and/or permanent preservation of electronic records requires additional commitment and active management by
the agency. Agencies agree to comply with all policies, standards, and best practices published by the Department
of Natural and Cultural Resources regarding the creation and management of electronic records.

Local government agencies should consider retention requirements and disposition authorities when designing and
implementing electronic records management systems. Any type of electronically-created or electronically-stored
informatian falls under the North Carolina General Assembly’s definition of publicrecords cited above. For example,
e-mail, text messages, blog posts, vaicemails, websites, word processing documents, spreadsheets, databases, and
PDFs all fall within this definition of public records. In addition, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132-6.1(a) specifies:
“Databases purchased, leased, created, or otherwise acquired by every public agency containing public
records shail be designed and malntained in a manner that does not impair or impede the public agency's
ability to permit the public inspection and examination of public records and provides a means of obtaining
copies of such records. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to require the retentfon by the public
agency of obsolete hardware or software.”
Local government agencies may scan any paper record and retain it electronically for ease of retrieval. If an agency
wishes to destroy the original paper records before their assigned retention periods have been met, the agency must
establish an electronic records policy, including putting into place procedures for quality assurance and
documentation of authorization for records destructions approved by the Government Records Section. This
electronic records policy and releases for destruction of recards must be approved by the Government Records
Section. Agencies should be aware that for the purpose of any audit, litigation, or public records request, they are
considered the records custodian obligated to produce requested records, even if said records are being maintained
electronically by an outside vendor. Therefore, contracts regarding electronically stored information should be
carefully negotiated to specify how records can be exported in case a vendor Boes out of business or the agency
decides to award the contract to a different vendor.

Reference Copies
All local government agencies and the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources agree that certain records

series possess only brief administrative, fiscal, legal, research, and reference value. These records series have been
designated by retention periods that allow these records to be destroyed when “reference value ends.” Al local
government agencies hereby agree that they will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention
periods for the records that Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy
when reference value ends.” If a local government agency does not establish internal policies and retention periods,
the local government agency is not complying with the provisions of this retention schedule and is not authorized
by the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to destroy the records with the disposition instruction “destroy
when reference value ends.”

Record Copy
A record copy is defined as “The single copy of a document, often the original, that is designated as the official copy

for reference and preservation.” The record copy is the one whose retention and disposition is mandated by these
schedules; all additional coples are considered reference or access coples and can be destroyed when their
usefulness expires. In some cases, postings to social media may be unofficlal copies of information that is captured
elsewhere as a record copy (e.g., a press release about an upcoming agency event that is copied to various sacial

! Society of American Archivists, Dictionary of Archives Terminology.

2021 Program Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies ii



media piatforms). Appropriately retaining record copies and disposing of reference copies requires agencies to
designate clearly what position or office is required to maintain an official record for the duration of its
designated retention period.

Transitory Records
Transitory records are defined as “record]s) that [have] little or no documentary or evidential value and that need

not be set aside for future use.”?

North Carolina has a broad definition of public records. However, the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources
recognizes that some records may have little or no long-term documentary or evidential value to the creating
agency. These records are often called transitory records. They may be disposed of according to the guidance
below. However, all public employees should be familiar with their appropriate retention schedule and any other
applicable guidelines for their office. (fthereisa required retention period forthese records, that requirement must
be followed. When in doubt about whether a record js transitory or whether it has special significance or
importance, retain the record in question and seek guidance from a DNCR records analyst.

Routing slips and transmittal sheets adding no information to that contained in the transmitted material have
minimal value after the material has been successfully transmitted. These records may be destroyed or otherwise
disposed of after recelpt of the material has been confirmed. Similarly, “while you were out” slips, memory aids,
and other records requesting follow-up actions (including voicemails and calendar invites} have minimal value once
the official action these records are supporting has been completed and documented. These records may be
destroyed or otherwise disposed of once the action has been resolved.

Drafts and working papers, including notes and calculations, are materials gathered or created to assist in the
creation of another record. Ali drafts and working Papers are public records subject to all provisions of Chapter 132
of the General Statutes, but many of them have minimal value after the final version of the record has been
approved, and may be destroyed after fina! approval, if they are no longer necessary to support the analysis or
conclusions of the official record. Drafts and working documents that may be destroyed after final approval include:
¢ Drafts and working papers for internal and external policies
s Drafts and working papers for internal administrative reports, such as daily and monthly activity reports;
* Drafts and working papers for internal, non-policy-level documents, such as informal workflows and
manuals; and
* Drafts and working papers for presentations, workshops, and other explanations of agency policy that is
already formally documented.

Forms used solely to create, update, or modify records in an electronic medium may be destroyed in office after
completion of data entry and after all verification and quality control procedures, so long as these records are not
required for audit or legal purposes. However, if the forms contain any analog components that are necessary to
validate the information contained on them (e.g., a signature or notary’s seal), they must be retained according to
the disposition instructions for the records series encompassing the forms’ function.

It is further agreed that these records may not be destroyed prior to the time periods stated; however, for sufficient
reason they may be retained for longer perfods. These schedules supersede previous versions of these schedules
and any localized amendments; they are to remain in effect from the date of approval until they are reviewed and
updated.

2 1bid.

2021 Program Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies iit



APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

Municipal/County Clerk or Manager
Titie:

APPROVED

Head of Governing Body
Title:

County/Municipality:

donel s Wote

Sarah E. Koonts, Director
Division of Archives and Records

2 /el

D. Reid Wilsan, Secretary
Department of Natural and Cuitural
Resources

Effective: Qctober 1, 2021

2021 Program Records Schedule: Lacal Government Agencies









MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MARCH 14, 2023
MINUTES

Chairman Higdon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. All Board Members,
County Manager Derek Roland, Deputy Clerk Mike Decker, Finance Director Lori
Carpenter and County Attorney Eric Ridenour were present, as were a number
of county employees, media and citizens.

At 6:01 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Shearl, seconded by
Commissioner Young, the board voted unanimously to recess the meeting to
Courtroom A on the fourth floor of the Macon County Courthouse. Chairman
Higdon reconvened the meeting at 6:08 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

(A) Mr. Roland announced that an adjustment would be made to the
front end of the agenda with the addition of Item 5B due to the speaker
having traveled from Atlanta to speak.

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Chairman Higdon requested all in attendance rise
and a moment of silence was observed.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Led by Commissioner Shields, the pledge to the
flag was recited.

PUBLIC HEARING(S): None

GORAIL: State Director Christy Sammon introduced herself and said her
purpose for being here was to educate the board about GoRail services and
grants that are available to Macon County. She invited board members to reach
out to her to further discuss opportunities for partnering on projects to improve
highways, railroad crossings and walking overpasses.

Minutes
03.14.23
Page 1 of 6



PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Susan Carter spoke about the proposed layout
of the new Nantahala Public Library and access to the community room. She
said the community club plans to use the room to provide craft classes,
educational activities, potlucks, etc. as they do in their current location. Ms.
Carter shared that the community club will only have access to half of the
room in the new location which is not large enough for their needs and asked
board members to intervene and find a way to give them full access.
Stephanie McGaha shared her concerns about Macon County Public Library.
Freda Bennett spoke in support of the Pre-K program in Highlands. She said
there are currently only 900 Pre-K slots in Macon County for approximately
1,800 children under the age of five. Commissioner Shearl responded with his
support of the Pre-K program and clarified the prioritization of projects
provided by the school liaison committee. Gary Abrignani inquired about the
tax assessment process and how property values are determined. Tax
Administrator Abby Braswell explained the procedural laws, rules and
Schedule of Values, and encouraged concerned citizens and those with
questions to come and talk to her or one of her staff in person. Linda Herman
yielded her opportunity to speak about the tax assessment. Claudia Aguilar
said she had requested a copy of the board’s Code of Ethics and was pleased to
see the topic on the agenda. Jim Gaston spoke about the Macon County
Library suggesting that the board not continue the partnership with the
Fontana Regional Library system. He recommended better salaries be
considered for the employees if the contract with the Fontana Regional Library
system is not renewed. Hazel Norris spoke about the Highlands Pre-K
program and how the board has to prioritize spending. Jerry Moore spoke in
support of the Highlands Pre-K program reminding board members that private
citizens raised $35,000 to do a feasibility study and requested funding for the
project be put back on the agenda. Commissioner Young commented that he
supports the project, but funding priorities presented by the school liaison
committee did not include the project in the top five priorities. Carter Davis
spoke in favor of the Highlands Pre-K project. Deni Shephard shared written
remarks that he had presented to the Macon County Library Board earlier
today and stated his issue was with the LGBTQ literature available in the
library. Robert Bull yielded his opportunity to speak about property
appraisals. Jeff Weller spoke in favor of the Highlands Pre-K program and
stated he does not understand why the project is not in the top five since some
of the other projects on the list have grant money or other funds to complete
them. Wendy McGaha stated she was at the Macon County Library board
meeting earlier today and indicated that some of those in attendance were not
allowed in the room and those allowed in were not permitted to speak. She
spoke about a book she had checked out of the library which she believes is
very explicit and inappropriate for the teen section. Ms. McGaha said the
board needed to pull out of the Fontana Regional Library System. Virginia
Cranfield yielded her opportunity to speak about property appraisals. Bonnie

Minutes
03.14.23
Page 2 of 6



Potts shared information about the Highlands Literacy Program and stated her
support for the Highlands Pre-K program. Chip Reames left the meeting
before his opportunity to speak about K-1 Funding in Highlands. Jim Osterle
spoke in favor of the Highlands Pre-K program.

ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon a
motion by Commissioner Young, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board
voted unanimously to approve the agenda, as adjusted, as follows:

¢ To add Item 11F under New Business, Parks and Recreation discussion,

per Commissioner Young

¢ To add Item 12{E) under Consent Agenda, Declaring the Service Weapon
for Bill Edwards as surplus and sale of the same to him for $1.00, per
Deputy Clerk Mike Decker

UPDATE ON MACON COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION ACTIVITIES - Macon
County Extension Director Christine Bredenkamp provided the board with an
overview of the work that the local North Carolina Cooperative Extension office
performs and introduced her staff who shared information about the services and
programs they provide and how Macon County youth and adults benefit. Ms.
Bredenkamp also provided board members with a brochure of services offered by the
office.

PROGRESS REPORT ON GEORGIA ROAD/SCALY MOUNTAIN AREA FIBER
INFRASTRUCTURE BUILD - Matt Saenger, the Director of Sales and Marketing for
Balsam West provided the board with an update on the progress of the firm’s efforts
to build fiber infrastructure down the Georgia Road and into the Scaly Mountain
area. He shared that they are currently in Phase II of the project with 253
connections in progress, 116 connections pending, and 193 prospects for internet
and voice services. Mr. Saenger said he considers the project a huge success and
indicated Balsam West has finished its response to the Nantahala RFP and hopes to
receive a positive response.

SKATE PARK PROJECT UPDATE - Franklin Town Manager Amie Owens provided
the board with an update on the proposed skate park project planned for the town’s
Whitmire Property. She said the proposed plan calls for $50,000 in funding from the
county in the upcoming budget year to assist in completing the project as quoted.
Ms. Owens reminded board members that the original cost of the project was
$294,750 which was reduced to $262,250 because the Town of Franklin was
completing the grading and some other work. She said that after fundraising
conducted by the youth of SK828, other donations, and receipt of a grant, the
remaining balance is $110,575 and the town has budgeted $50,000 toward that
amount. Ms. Owens indicated the grading is planned to be completed in May with an
anticipated opening of the skate park in late summer. Commissioner Antoine made a

Minutes
03.14.23
Page 3 of 6









CONSENT AGENDA: Upon a motion by Commissioner Young, seconded by
Commissioner Shearl, the board voted unanimously to approve the consent
agenda as presented which includes: (A) Minutes of the February 9, 2023,
continued session, the February 14, 2023, regular meeting and the February 21,
2023, continued session; (B} Budget Amendments #189-195; (C) Tax releases for
the month of February in the amount of $685.65; (D) Monthly ad valorem tax
collection report for which no action is necessary; and (E) Declare the service
pistol for Mr. Bill Edwards surplus and sale or the same to him for $1.00.

APPOINTMENTS:
{(A) Economic Development Commission (3 seats) - Commissioner Young
made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Shearl to approve the
reappointments of Brett Rogers and David Hubbs, and appoint Johnathan
Hamlin to the Economic Development Commission. The vote was
unanimous.

CLOSED SESSION: At 9:09 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Young,
seconded by Commissioner Antoine, the board voted unanimously to go into
closed session as allowed under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) in order to preserve the
attorney client privilege and NCGS 143-381.11{(a)(6) to consider the
qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of
appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer
or employee or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a
complaint, charge, or grievance by or against an individual public officer or
employee. At 9149 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Shearl, seconded by
Commissioner Young, the board voted unanimously to come out of the closed
session and return to the open session.

ADJOURN: With no other business, at 9:50 p.m., upon a motion from
Commissioner Shearl, seconded by Commissioner Antoine, the board voted
unanimously to adjourn,

Derek Roland Paul Higdon
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Chair

Minutes
03.14.23
Page 6 of 6

































I Print Form

Application for Appointment to Macon County
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

The Macon County Board of Commissioners believes all citizens should have the opportunity to
Participate in governmental decisions. The Board wants to appoint qualified, know!edgeab]e and
dedicated people to serve on authorities, boards and committees. If you have an interest in being
considered for an appointment to any advemsed vacaney, please thoroughly complete the form
below before the advertised deadline and choose from the following options.

Mail to: County Manager's Office
5 West Main Street or FAX to; 828-349.2400
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Any Questions, please call the County Manager's Office at (828) 349-2025

Name of Authority, Board or Committee applying for: Flannlng Board

Name |3en Ledford

Address[qﬁ?S Clarks Chapel Rd (City franklin  NCzip ]23734

Telephone: Home st-349-0335 ' Work P28-421-7331

Occupation FeIfEmployed-Own Restaurant/Retail Market/Farming

Business Address Fl S. Patton Ave Franklin, NC

Email Address }gen@zllfarm com J

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of interest you may have if appomted

one

Educational Background

Graduated High Schoal '

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:
Fmall business owner and manager.

elp youth with livestock projects for shaws,
Atbrmend Dina Crrain . Qantict Cha

Areas of Expertise and Interest/Skllls

Warking well with others to solve problems,
Finding ways to better a sltuation thats works for everyone.

List any Authorities, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently serving on:

Macon County Farm Bureau, Macon County Fair Board, JMS Cattlemnans Assaciation, I
|

SIGNATURE: /Z/g DATE: | B-16-23 |




